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NOTICE| 
 

 
 

SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED 
CIN: L65991TN1993PLC028228 

 600 002 
Website: www.sugalshare.com 

 
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 

OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING ("VC") / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL 
MEANS ("OAVM") ON FRIDAY SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 AT 11:30 A.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 

BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
 

Item No. 1   To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and Profit & 
Loss Account for the period ended on that date and the Reports of Directors and Auditor 
thereon. 

 
Item No. 2  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahesh Chandak (DIN  00050149) who retires by 

rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 
 

Item No. 3  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prasan Chand Jain (DIN  00050081) who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 
 

 
By Order of the Board 

For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD 
Regd Office: 

 
No. 7, Anna Salai, Chennai  600 002       Sd/- 
          Mahesh Chandak 
        Executive Director| DIN 00050149 

     No. 41, Ritherdon Road, Kadambari Apartment, Vepery, Chennai- 07 
Place: Chennai 
Date: August 11, 2023 
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NOTICE| 
 

Notes: 
 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its latest circular dated December 28,2022, 
May 5, 2022, January 13, 2021, read with circulars dated May 5, 2020, April 13, 2020 and April 8, 
2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") permitted the holding of the Annual General 
Meeting ("AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a 
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") 
and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. 

 
2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. 
The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 

September 15, 2023 to September 29, 2023 inclusive of both days (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of ensuing AGM of the Company. 

 
4. The Shares of the Company are eligible to be held in dematerialised form in Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited  
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled 
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the 
Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, 
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment 
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

 
6. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 

send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution / Authorisation 
etc., authorising its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote 
through remote e-voting. The said Resolution / Authorisation shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by 
email through its registered email address to snehajaincs@gmail.com. 

 
7. As per Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividends unclaimed relating to the 

years 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12 and 2012-13 were transferred on 06.09.2017, 05.10.2018, 
05.10.2019  and 06.10.2020  respectively to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. Members 
who have not encashed the dividend warrants for the financial year 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12 and 
2012-13 are requested to claim from the Investor Education and Protection Fund by making an 
application to the Company. 
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8. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars dated December 28, 2022, May 12, 
2020 and January 15, 2021 Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent 
only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also 
be available on the Company's website www.sugalshare.com and website of Stock Exchange i.e., 
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. 

 
9. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the 

AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before September 22, 2023 through email on 
sugalshare_2008@rediffmail.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. 

 
10. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, i.e., Friday, September 29, 2023. 

 
11. SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655, dated 03.11.2021 and 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated 14.12.2021, 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16.03.2023 has mandated the submission 
of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depository 
participant(s). On May 24, 2023, the Company has sent a PAN and KYC update intimation to 
physical shareholders. Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN 
details to the RTA by e-mail to cameo@cameoindia.com. In case of Members are holding shares in 
physical form, you are advised to convert shareholding into demat form by approaching depository 
participant. 

 
12. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

read with SEBI notification dated 24th January, 2022, has SEBI has mandated that all requests for 
transfer of securities including transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in 
dematerialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 
and avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize the shares 
held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company for assistance in this regard 
Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are 
requested to send to the Company, the details of such folios together with the share certificates 
along with the requisite KYC Documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for 
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form. As per the provisions 
of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is available for the 
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a member desires 
to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/ she may submit the 
same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the 

www.sugalshare.com. 
 

13. Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in 
dematerialized form and the Company in case the shares are held in physical form. In case of joint 
holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the 
Register of Members of the Company, will be entitled to vote during the AGM 
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14. Members are requested to send all communications relating to transfer of physical shares/demat, 
etc., directly to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, 
'Subramanian Building' (V Floor), No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002. 

 
15. Members who have not registered / updated their e-mail addresses with Cameo Corporate Services 

Ltd, if shares are held in physical mode or with their DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode, are 
requested to do so for receiving all future communications from the Company including Annual 
Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., electronically.

 
16. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, substituted by Companies 
(Management & Administration) Amendment, Rules 2015 & Regulation 44 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, the company is 
pleased to provide facility to the members to exercise and cast their votes electronically on all 
resolutions set forth in this notice through the electronic voting service facility arranged by Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited.  

 
17. Ms. Sneha Jain, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS  8889/CP  10650) of M/s. Sneha Jain & 

Associates, Company Secretaries (email id: snehajaincs@gmail.com) of 109, Vellala Street, III 
Floor, Puraswalkam, Chennai - 600 084 has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote 
e-voting and voting process to be carried out at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
18. The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Thursday, September 28, 2023 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (i.e., 
September 22, 2023), may cast their votes electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Detailed instruction e-voting are annexed to the Notice. 

 
19. With a view to using natural resources more responsibly, we request shareholders to update their 

email addresses with their Depository Participants to enable the Company to send communications 
electronically. 

 
20. The results on the resolutions will be declared not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM i.e. 

September 29, 2023 or any adjournment 
www.sugalshare.com and on the website of 

CDSL at www.evotingindia.com and will also be forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where the 

in the Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM. 
 

21. The instructions for e-voting have been annexed to this Annual Report. Sequence Number has been 
provided as Sl. No.  in the Address label. 

 
22. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the directors 
seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the meeting is furnished as annexure to the notice. The 
directors have furnished Consent/Declaration for their appointment/re-appointment as required 
under Companies Act, 2013 & rules there under. 
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Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 with regard to the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed vide items No. 2 and 3 of the notice dated 
August 11, 2023 
 

Name of the Director Mr. Mahesh Chandak Mr. Prasan Chand Jain 

Date of Birth 15.06.1964 09.05.1967 

Number 00050149 00050081 

Date of appointment on the Board as 
Director 

24.10.2008 28.07.2010 

Date of last appointment / reappointment 
as Director 

29.09.2021 28.09.2022 

Expertise in specific functional areas 
About 27 years of experience in 

Share Broking 
About 23 years of experience in 

Share Broking 

Qualification F.C.A H.S.L.C. 

List of outside Directorships held 
1. Sugal Commodity Brokers Pvt. Ltd 

 

1. SDN Agro Farms Limited 

2. Ankur Foundations Pvt. Ltd 

3. Skill Lotto Solutions Pvt. Ltd 
4. Spatium Developers Pvt. Ltd 
5. Skilrock Technologies Pvt. Ltd 

 

Chairman / Member of the Committees 
of Board of Directors of the Company 

1. Audit Committee 
2.  
3. Borrowing Committee 
4. Investment Committee 
5. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

NIL 

Chairman / Member of the Committees 
of Board of Directors of other 
Companies in which he is a Director 

Nil Nil 

Relationship between Directors Inter- se Nil Brother of Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar 

Shareholding in the Company 3,54,001 Equity Shares 9,48,185 Equity Shares 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
Your director s would like to present the Thirtieth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts 
for the year ended March 31, 2023. The financial highlights of your Company for the year 2022-23 
are as follows: 
 

 
Particulars 

2022  23 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

2021  22 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Gross Income 259.03 269.16 

Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax    153.15 182.90 

Less: Interest - - 

Less: Depreciation              2.08              1.84 

Net Profit before Tax               151.07          181.06 

Less: Tax and other prior period adjustment 53.34 44.45 

Net Profit for the period after tax and prior period 
adjustment 

97.70 136.61 

Other Comprehensive Income (12.69) 32.94 

Total Comprehensive Income 85.02 169.55 

Less: Proposed Dividend & Tax - - 

Less: Transitional Depreciation - - 

Add: Profit brought forward                    
from the previous year               

       1195.95           1026.40 

Add: Transition Impact as per Ind AS  - - 

Profit carried forward                1280.97        1195.95 

Earnings per Share   

Basic:  1.56 2.19 

Diluted: 1.56 2.19 

 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Company's operations resulted in Profit for the year 2022-23 but the same is required to carry out 
the new business venture. Hence your director s have not recommended any dividend on the Equity 
Capital of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY S AFFAIRS 
 
The Company has been conducting the operational activities during the year as mentioned below:  
 

Buying, Selling and dealing in shares and other Securities in Secondary Markets.  
 

RESERVES 
 
The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY  
 
The company has already surrendered CDSL and BSE membership and surrender of membership in 
NSE is in process. 
 
DIRECTORATE 
 
Mr. Prasan Chand Jain (DIN  00050081), Director, retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
Mr. Mahesh Chandak (DIN  00050149), Director, retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY DIRECTORS 
 
The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Directors in accordance 
with Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as 
laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant regulations of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
 
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Company had 5 Board meetings during the financial year under review. The intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. For further 
details please refer report on Corporate Governance of this Annual Report. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out an Annual Performance 
Evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and other committees. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, the Independent Directors 
held a meeting on November 12, 2022, and: 

 Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole. 
 

management and the Board, which is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties  

 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Pursuant to Clause 25(7) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company shall familiarize the 
Independent Directors with the Company and their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, 
nature of industry in which the company operates, business model of the Company etc. 
 
However, the Independent Directors have been a part of the Board for a few years now, and so no separate 
sessions for familiarization have been conducted during the year. 
Familarisation Programme for Independent Directors can be accessed at 
http://www.sugalshare.com/InvestorRelations/CompanyPolicies/FamilarisationProgrammeforIndependent 
Directors. 
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REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
Your Board has a remuneration policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior 
Management and their remuneration. The remuneration policy forms a part of the Corporate 
Governance Report annexed to this report. 
 
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority 

dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF established by the Central 
Government, after the completion of seven years. Further, according to the Rules, the shares in 
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive 
years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account created by the IEPF Authority. 
Further, the statement of unclaimed and unpaid dividend are provided on our website, at 
www.sugalshare.com/Investorrelations/Reporting/Statement of Unclaimed Dividend. 
 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
The company neither has any subsidiary nor any joint venture(s) during the year.  
 
AUDITOR        

 
Mrs. Diyali B proprietor M/s. Diyali B and Associates, Chartered Accountant, Chennai, is the retiring 
auditor and he is eligible for reappointment as auditor of the company. 
 
The Company has received letter from Mrs. Diyali B and Associates to the effect that his re-
appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section 141(3)(g) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and that he is not disqualified for re-appointment. 
 
COMMENTS ON SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company appointed, M/s. N K Bhansali & Co, Company Secretaries, to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2022-23 in terms of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is 
annexed as Annexure A of this report.  
 
The Secretarial Auditor has observed that the shares as per section 124 (6) had not been transferred by 
the company to IEPF as the company was not able to upload IEPF 4 ie Statement of Shares 
Transferred to the IEPF due to some technical issues with IEPF PORTAL for which necessary 
communications were made but resolution for the same is not arrived at. The matter is being 
consistently followed up by the company with the IEPF authorities. Further the company has 
transferred the Shares to IEPF on 17th May 2022 only form IEPF 4 has not been filed. 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS 
 
The Company has appointed Mr. O Tej Prakash, of M/s. Tej Prakash & Co, Chartered Accountant as 
its Internal Auditor. His scope of work includes review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company, review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the 
internal control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners 
and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to 
improve efficiency in operations. 
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WHISTLE BOWLER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil 
Mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil 
Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.sugalshare.com under 
Investor Relations > Company Policies > Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
The company is primarily exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risks. 
The Board oversees and approves  enterprise wide risk management framework. It 
reviews credit and operational risks and policies in relation to investment strategy and other risks like 
interest rate risk and liquidity risk.  risks 
and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve 
management systems, organisational structures, processes, standards and code of conduct together 
form the risk management governance system of the company. 
 
Your company has a robust Risk Management Methodology which has been implemented effectively 
outlining the exposure given to the Clients of the Company and ensuring the integrity of the 

accounting and financial reporting systems, including the independent audit and 
compliance with the law and relevant standards. 
 
DEPOSITS 
 
Your Company did not invite or accept any Deposit from public during the year under review. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
 
Details of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
annexed to this report in Annexure B. 
 
CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 

ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions with the 
elatives which could have had a potential 

conflict with the interests of the Company. 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The world has come out of Covid -19 Pandamic due to vaccination by the government and the 
economy has started growing. The war between Russia and Ukraine has affected the energy market 
and supply chain, mainly Oil which has increased inflation worldwide. The federal bank has increased 
the Interest rates and has taken a hockey step to reduce its balance sheet which has resulted in higher 
bond yield. In India RBI has increased Interest rate and CRR to curtail the inflation and the 
government has also taken initiative to curtain excess liquidity provided during the pandemic. As 
expected the Indian economy has started reviving. 
 
(a) Industry Structure and Developments 

 
During the year market has been rising sharply. The market trends will further be determined by 
various domestic and international factors like global market movements, outcome of war 
between Russia and Ukraine, RBI's policy, upcoming state and general elections and visible 
improvement in corporate earnings of domestic firms.  
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(b) Opportunities and threats 
 

The company has already surrendered CDSL and BSE membership and surrender of membership 
in NSE is in process. 
 
You company has entered into new business venture relating to plotting and land development. 
 
Market may be volatile due to State elections and upcoming general elections. 

 
(c) Segment-Wise or Product-Wise Performance 
 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 the Company operated only in one segment of 
business viz, Share Broking.  
 

(d) Outlook 

The secondary markets are expected to remain volatile. 
 

(e) Internal Control Systems and their adequacy 
 

In the opinion of your Directors, Internal Control Systems in the Company are adequate.  
 

(f) Financial Performance 
 

The financial performance during the year under review is given above. 
 

(g) Human Resources/Industrial Relations 
 

The number of people employed has become 14 and the employer-employee relations have been 
cordial throughout the year. 

 
(h) Risks and concerns 
 

SEBI has introduced margin system for Intra-day trading as well which has mitigated the risk of 
the company.  
 

POLICY ON RISK MANAGEMENT 

In accordance with the requirement of Corporate Governance the Board of Directors of the Company 
has adopted a policy on risk management for assessment and minimization procedure of risk for 
periodical review by the Board. 
 
POLICY ON DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY FOR DISCLOSURES 
 
In terms of the Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Damani Share Brokers Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
Policy for determination of materiality of events/ information. Further, the detailed policy are 
provided on our website, at www.sugalshare.com/company policies/policy on determination of 
materiality for disclosures. 
 

POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS 

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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objective of classifying various documents, records and registers for the purpose of 
maintenance and preservation. Further, the detailed policy are provided on our website, at 
www.sugalshare.com/company policies/policy on preservation of documents. 
 
POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The policy regulates all transactions between the Company and its related parties in accordance 
with Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Further, the detailed policy are provided on our website, at 
www.sugalshare.com/company policies/policy on related party transactions. 
 
OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The Company has adopted a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace and 
has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company has not received 
any compliant of harassment. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

There was no employee whose particulars as per the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, are to be reported. 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other detail as required under section 197(12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 are provided in this report in Annexure D. 
 
INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
The consumption of electricity during the year was minimal. Management is taking conscious efforts 
to conserve energy. Your Company has no activity with regard to technology absorption. Your 
Company does not have any foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Corporate Governance regulations as per the Listing Agreement have been fully complied with. 
The Report of your Directors on the practices of Corporate Governance forms part of this report in 
Annexure E. A Certificate from the Auditor of the Company regarding compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance, certification by CEO / CFO and Declaration of Compliance with Code of 
Conduct form a part of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

As required by Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm: 

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 
(b) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and   

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2023, and 
of the profit/loss of the Company for that year; 

 
(c) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
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safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

 
(d) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
 
(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;  
 

and 
 

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 
 
ADOPTION OF THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Ind AS) 
 
The Company had adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Accordingly the financial 
statements for current year including comparative figures of previous year are based on Ind AS and in 
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles stated therein.  
 
LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES 
 
Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (Scrip Code  511654).  
Listing fee to the Stock Exchange has been paid up to date. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Your  would like to sincerely thank the Company's banker HDFC Bank Ltd, Bank of Baroda 
and the shareholders of the Company. We also thank the business associates, clients and employees of 
the Company for their co-operation and support. 

By order of the Board 
For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD, 

 
Sd/-              Sd/- 

   Mahesh Chandak        S. Kannadasan 
   Executive Director                   Director 
    DIN  00050149            DIN -00050177

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2023 
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Form No. MR  3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2023 
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 
To 
The Members, 
SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED 
CIN No: L65991TN1993PLC028228 
City Centre Plaza, 7, Anna Salai, Ist Floor 
Chennai - 600002  
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by SUGAL & DAMANI 
SHARE BROKERS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts with statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the company books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2023 complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I  have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by M/s SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2023, according to the provisions of: 
 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

under; 
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; 
v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of Ind - 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations,2015; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
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f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021; 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; 
 

  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following : 
 

i. The listing agreement entered into by the company with Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and 

ii. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(ICSI). 

 
and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period the 
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. as mentioned above. Though the shares as per section 124 (6) had not been 
transferred by the company to IEPF as the company was not able to upload IEPF 4 i.e 
Statement of Shares Transferred to the IEPF due to some technical issues with IEPF 
PORTAL for which necessary communications were made but resolution for the same is not 
arrived at. The matter is consistently followed up with the IEPF authorities.  
 
However In the absence of any transaction in regulations under clause (iv) and clause v ( e ) 
to v (h) as mentioned above during the review period hence the compliance of the relevant 
regulations concerning these matters as herein above does not arise. 
 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There 
was no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under 
review. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All the decisions at the Board Meetings are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings. 

 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
I further report that during the audit period there were no incidence / events / actions 
having 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

 
                                                                                             For N.K.BHANSALI & CO., 
                                                                                                 Company Secretaries 
  
            Sd/- 
                                                                                                             (N.K.BHANSALI) 
Date: 28/08/2023                                                                                      Proprietor 
Place: Chennai           C.P No:2321| FCS No. 3942                                                                       
                                                                                            UDIN : F003942E000877078 
                                                                       Peer Review Certificate No.: 1825/2022 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A 
 
 
To 
The Members, 
SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED 
CIN No: L65991TN1993PLC028228 
City Centre Plaza, 7, Anna Salai, 1st Floor, 
Chennai  600 002 
 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to express opinion on these records based on our audit. 
 

and directions which are applicable to the company depending upon the industry in which 
it operates and to comply and maintain those records with the same in letter and in spirit. 
My responsibility is to express opinion on these records is limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis . 
  
3. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the secretarial records .The verification was done on test 
basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
  
4. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
accounts of the company. 
  

compliance of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and directions and happening of event 
etc., 
 
6. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 
                                                                                                   
 
                                                                                           For N.K.BHANSALI & CO., 

                                                                                       Company Secretaries 
         Sd/- 
 
                                                                                                        (N.K.BHANSALI) 
Date: 28/08/2023                                                                                  Proprietor 
Place: Chennai                                                                     C.P No:2321| FCS No. 3942 
                                                                                            UDIN : F003942E000877078  
                                                                            Peer Review Certificate No.: 1825/2022 
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Annexure  B 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Details of Loans: 
 

SL 
No 

Date 
of  

making 
loan 

Details 
of 

Borrower 

Amount Purpose for 
which the loan 
is to be utilized 

by the 
recipient 

Time period for 
which it is given 

Date 
of BR 

Date 
of SR 

(if 
reqd) 

Rate of 
Interest 

Security 

NIL 
 
 

Details of Investments:- 
 

SL 
No 

Date of 
investment 

Details  of Investee Amount  
Purpose for which the proceeds  

from investment is proposed to be 
utilized by the recipient 

As disclosed in Notes to Financial Statement 
   
 

 Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: 
 

SL 
No 

Date of 
providing 
security 

/ guarantee 

Details of  
recipient 

Amount Purpose for which the 
security/guarantee is proposed 
to be utilized by the recipient 

Date of 
BR 

Date of 
SR (if 
any) 

Commission 

NIL 
 

 
 

By order of the Board 
For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD. 

 
Sd/-            Sd/- 

Mahesh Chandak             S. Kannadasan 
Executive Director        Director 

     DIN  00050149                               DIN  00050179 
Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2023 
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Annexure  C
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

 
Name (s) of 
the related 
party & 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ar
rangements/
transaction 

Duration of 
the 
contracts/ar
rangements/
transaction 

Salient 
terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangemen
ts or 
transaction 
including 
the value, if 
any 

Justificatio
n for 
entering 
into such 
contracts 
or 
arrangeme
nts or 
transaction
s

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount paid 
as advances, 
if any 

Date on 
which the 
special 
resolution 
was passed 
in General 
meeting as 
required 
under first 
proviso to 
section 188 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 
Details of  

S. 
No. 

Name (s) of the 
related party & 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arran
gements/transa

ction 

Duration of 
the 

contracts/ar
rangements/
transaction 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 

transaction 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 

Date(s) of 
approval 

by the 
Members 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any 

1 Mr. N. 
Sugalchand Jain, 
Father of Mr. S. 

Vinodh Kumar & 
Mr. Prasanchand 
Jain, Directors 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going
The Company 

is engaged in 

the business of 

providing 

demat services 

in respect of 

sale and 

purchase of 

securities held 

by the related 

parties. The 

Company in its 

ordinary 

August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

2 Mr. Bhagwandas 
Chandak, 

Vice President 
&Father of Mr. 

Mahesh Chandak, 
Director 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

3 Mr. Dwarkadas 
Chandak, 

Brother of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

4 Mrs. Savitha 
Chandak, 

Wife of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 
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brokerage fee course of 

business 

charges a 

brokerage fees 

which is at 

rate normally 

prevailing in 

the industry. 

The Company 

gives a facility 

of payment of 

brokerage fees 

after the 

settlement of 

transactions. In 

this course, 

there are 

chances of 

deferment in 

realization of 

brokerage fees. 

Although the 

transactions 

are not 

material in 

nature, but, 

with respect to 

good 

governance 

practice your 

Company 

seeks an 

5 Mrs. Meena 
Kumari 

Sister of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

6 Ms. Radhika 
Maheshwari 

Daughter of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

7 Ms. Krishna 
Maheshwari 

Daughter of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

8 Ms. Kishori 
Maheshwari 

Daughter of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

9 Ms. Ardhaya 
Maheshwari 

Daughter of Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

10 Mr. Mahesh 
Chandak, 
Executive 
Director 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

11 Nakthamal 
Bhagwandas 

Chandak HUF 
Entity in which 

Mr. Mahesh 
Chandak is 
interested 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

12 Bhagwandas 
Mahesh Kumar 
Chandak HUF 
Entity in which 

Mr. Mahesh 
Chandak is 
interested 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

13 Mr. S. Vinodh 
Kumar, Executive 

Director 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

14 Mr. S. Prasan 
Chand Jain, 

Availing or 
rendering of 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 
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Non-Executive 
Director 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

approval from 

members for 

fixing the 

maximum 

amount of 

outstanding 

brokerage fees. 

15 M/s. Siyat 
Holding Private 

Limited, 
Company in 
which Mr. S. 

Vinodh Kumar & 
Mr. Prasan Chand 
Jain are interested 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

16 Sugal Commodity 
Brokers Private 

Limited, Entity in 
which director(s) 

are interested 

Availing or 
rendering of 

any services  
receipt of 

brokerage fee 

On going August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

17 Sugal Commodity 
Brokers Private 

Limited, 
Entity in which 
director(s) are 

interested 

Leasing of 
Property of any 
kind  payment 

of rent 

On going The Company 
has taken on 
rent the 
premises 
owned by the 
said party for 
using the same 
in the ordinary 
course of 
business and at 
for a rent at 

rate 

August 
4, 2015 

September 
25, 2015 

- 

 
By order of the Board 

For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD. 
 
Sd/-            Sd/- 

Mahesh Chandak             S. Kannadasan 
Executive Director      Director 
  DIN 00050149                               DIN  00050179 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2023 
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ANNEXURE D
 

terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 

S. 
No. 

Particulars Disclosure 

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of the 
employees for the financial year 

Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar, 
Executive Director 

- 

Mr. Mahesh Chandak, 
Executive Director 

6.82 times 

2 The percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director, in the financial year 

Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar, 
Executive Director 

- 

Mr. Mahesh Chandak, 
Executive Director 

- 

3 The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year 

The median remuneration of the employees in the 
FY had decreased by 6.82%. The calculation of % 
increase or decrease in Median Remuneration is 
done based on comparable employees. For this the 
employees who were not eligible for any increment 
have been excluded. 

4 The number of permanent employees on 
the rolls of the Company 

The Company had 14 employees on the rolls as on 
March 31, 2023 

5 The explanation on the relationship 
between average increase in remuneration 
and Company performance 

While recommending increase in remuneration, the 
Company takes into account various factors like 
financial performance of the Company and the 
group, comparison with peers, industry 
benchmarking and consideration towards cost of 
living adjustments and inflation. The Company 
follows holistic performance review mechanism to 
ensure that the increase is commensurate with the 
performance of employee and company. 

6 Comparison of the remuneration of the 
KMP against the performance of the 
Company 

Please refer pt. no. 9 below 

7 Variations in the market capitalization of 
the Company 
 
 
Price earnings ratio as at the closing date 
of the current FY and previous FY 
 
 
% increase over decrease in the market 
quotations of the shares of the Company in 
comparison to the rate at which the 
Company came out with the last public 
offer. 

The Market Capitalisation of the Company as on 
March 31, 2023 was Rs. 9.26 Crores as compared 
to Rs 9.06 Crores as on March 31, 2022. 
 
The price earnings ratio of the Company was 9.50 
as at March 31, 2023 and was 6.62 as at March 31, 
2022. 
 
Not Applicable 
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8 Average percentile increase already made 
in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and point out if 
there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration; 

6.79 Percentage. There is no change in managerial 
remuneration. 

9 Comparison of the each remuneration of 
the KMP against the performance of the 
Company 

Particulars 
% of PAT for 
  FY 2022-23 

Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar, 
Executive Director 

- 

Mr. Mahesh Chandak, 
Executive Director 

Unascertainable since 
the PAT of the 

company is negative. 
10 The key parameters for any variable 

component of remuneration availed by the 
directors. 

The broad factors and guidelines considered for the 
variable remuneration of directors are: 
(a) Annual Performance Review of the Directors; 
and
(b) Financial outcomes and profitability of the 
Company 

11 The ratio of the remuneration of the 
highest paid director to that of the 
employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year 

Not applicable 

12 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
the remuneration policy of the Company 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is 
as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 
the Company. 

 
 

By order of the Board 
For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD. 
 
Sd/-            Sd/- 

Mahesh Chandak             S. Kannadasan 
Executive Director      Director 
  DIN 00050149                               DIN  00050179 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 26, 2023 
 

22



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS  REPORT | 

 

                                                                                                                                            

ANNEXURE E 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
I.  
 
Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited believes in adopting the best practices of Corporate 
Governance and stands committed to good corporate governance. The spirit of Corporate 
Governance is shaped by the values of transparency, professionalism, accountability, and high 
levels of integrity in decision making. We have identified four core values of Learning, 
Teamwork, Speed and Excellence which are being institutionalized in our organization. Our 
policies are constantly reviewed and improved keeping in mind our goal of maximization of 
values to all the stakeholders. The stipulations of Corporate Governance mandated by Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 are being fully complied. However Corporate Governance is not applicable to our company 
since the Paid up capital does not exceed 10 crores and Net worth does not exceed 25 crores as on 
last day of the previous financial year. 
 
 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Composition of the Board 
 
As on March 31, 2023, 3 are 
Non-Executive Directors. Thus the number of Non - Executive Directors is 50% of the total 
number of Directors. There are 3 Independent Directors. The composition of the Board is in 
conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Non-Executive Directors are professionals, having expertise in general corporate 
management, finance and other allied fields. 
 

 
 
As mandated by the Listing Regulations, none of the Independent Directors of the Company are 
whole-time directors in any listed Company and do not serve as an Independent Director in more 
than seven listed Companies. Further, none of the Directors on the Board are members of more 
than ten Board level committees or Chairman of more than five committees across all the 
Companies of which he/she is a Director. Details of the composition of the Board and attendance 
are given below: 
 
Composition of the Board of Directors 
 
 

Name of the Director 

No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
attended 

Attendance at 
previous 
AGM on 

28.09.2022 

No. of outside 
Directorships 

held 

No. of 
membership/    

Chairmanship 
in other Board 

Committees 

Executive/ 
Non- 

Executive/ 
Independent 

Mr. S. Kannadasan 5 Present Nil 3 
Non-Executive 
& Independent 
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Mr. Prasan Chand Jain  3 Present 5 Nil Non-Executive 

Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar 
Executive Director 

5 Present 5 2 Executive 

Mr. Mahesh Chandak 
Executive Director 

5 Present 1 5 Executive 

Mr. Rajesh Gurdas 
Wadhwa 

3 Absent 1 2 
Non-Executive 
& Independent 

Mrs. Dhanesh Mrinalini 4 Present 1 Nil 
Non-Executive 
& Independent 

 
 The directorship held by the Directors do not include directorship of foreign companies. 

 Mr. Prasan Chand Jain and Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar are brothers. 

 Mr. Prasan Chand Jain, Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar and Mr. Mahesh Chandak are a part of the 
Promoter Group. 
 

Number of Board Meetings 
 

The Board of Directors met four times during the year on April 18, 2022, May 27, 2022, August 
12, 2022, November 12, 2022 and February 13, 2023. The time gap between two consecutive 
Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.  
 
Meeting of Independent Directors 
 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on November 12, 2022 without the 
attendance of non-independent directors and members of the management. All the three 
independent directors were present at the meeting. The meeting of the directors was held to inter-
alia: 
 

i) Review the performance of the Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
ii) Assess the quality, quantity and time lines 

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform its duties. 

 
Information supplied to the Board 
 
The Board has complete access to all the information with the Company. The agenda and the 
papers for consideration of the Board are circulated well in advance. Adequate information 
including any important development connected with the business of the Company is circulated 
as part of Agenda papers and also placed at the meeting to enable the Board to take informed 
decisions. 
 
Information in cases of appointment / re-appointment of Directors as required under Regulation 
36 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given in 
a separate sheet forming part of the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 
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Details of the Shares and Convertible instruments held by the Directors 
 

Name of the Director Category 
Number of 
Shares held 

No of convertible 
instrument held 

Mr. S. Kannadasan Non-Executive Independent Nil Nil 
Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar Executive 14,48,601 Nil 
Mr. Mahesh Chandak Executive 3,54,001 Nil 
Mr. Prasan Chand Jain Non-Executive 9,48,185 Nil 

Mr. Rajesh Gurdas Wadhwa Non-Executive Independent Nil Nil 
Ms. Dhanesh Mrinalini Non-Executive Independent Nil Nil 

 
Familarization Programme for Board Members 
 
The Board Members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies which 
help them to understand the Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the 
Company operates and equips them to effectively fulfill their role as a Director of the Company. 
 
Further, the Directors are also updated about the compliances required to be made by them from 
time to time under various Acts and Statutes. 
 

The details of Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors are available on 
www.sugalshare.comunder Investor Relations > Company Policies 

>Familarization Programme for Independent Directors. 
 
The Independent Directors have been appointed for a term of 5 years and a formal letter of 
appointment has been given to each director in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, which 
inter alia explains the role, functions, duties and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of 
the Company. The letters of appointment of Independent Directors are available on the 

 
 
III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 
As on March 31, 2023, the Company consists of four Board-level Committees  Audit 

and Investment and Borrowing Committee. 
 
All details pertaining to the constitution of Committees, appointment of members and fixing of 
terms of service for Committee Members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role 
and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial 
year and the related attendance, are provided below: 
 
a) Audit Committee 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely namely Mr. S. 
Kannadasan, Mr. Rajesh Gurdas Wadhwa, Non-Executive & Independent Directors and Mr. 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the members of the Audit Committee possess 
requisite accounting and financial management expertise.  
  
The Audit Committee met five times during the year on April 18, 2022, May 27, 2022, August 
12, 2022, November 12, 2022 and February 13, 2023.The time gap between any two meetings 
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was less than four months, The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of 
members are given below: 
 
Attendance Record of Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited Audit Committee during 2022-23 
 

Name of Member Category Status 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 
Mr. S. Kannadasan Non-Executive Independent Chairman 5 5 
Mr. Rajesh Gurdas 

Wadhwa 
Non-Executive Independent Member 

5 5 

Mr. Mahesh Chandak Executive Member 5 4 
 
The Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor are also regularly invited by the Audit Committee to 
discuss their comments and recommendations of accounts, internal controls and processes. The 
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors were present at the Audit Committee meetings held 
during the year.  
 
The Audit Committee has the power to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, to 
seek information from any employee, to obtain outside legal or other professional advice and to 
secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 
 
The Role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been defined under Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (earlier Clause 49(III) of Listing 
Agreement). The Committee reviews the Internal Audit Reports and action taken reports of the 
management thereupon. It also reviews and discusses with the management and Statutory 
Auditors, the quarterly results, financial statements and such other related issues before their 
submission to the Board. 
 
The Board terms of reference of the Audit Committee therefore include: 
 
 Recommendations for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the 

Company; 
 

process; 
 Examination of the financial s  
 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 Monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 

 
The Company also has systems and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit Committee 
mandatorily reviews: 
 

 Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
 Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), 

submitted by management; 
 Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory 

Auditors; 
 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
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 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Statutory Auditor/Internal 
Auditor 

 
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three 
members, namely Mr. S. Kannadasan, Non-Executive & Independent Director, Mr. Rajesh 
Gurdas Wadhwa, Non-Executive & Independent Director and Mr. Mahesh Chandak, Executive 
Director. 
 
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets the requirements of Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee include: 
 
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover all the areas 
mentioned under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the earlier Clause 49(IV) of the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The board terms of reference of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee include: 
 

 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to remuneration for the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees; 

 Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors/Independent Directors in 
accordance with the criteria laid down; 

 Identifying and selecting potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial 
Personnel and to other Senior Management Positions; 

 Recommend to the Board appointment and removal of the aforementioned persons; 
 Review and evaluate the performance of the Directors; and 
 To carry out any other functions as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or 

enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 
 
Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent Directors 
 
Performance evaluation of each independent Director of the Company is done regularly by the 
Board of Directors of the Company on the basis of the parameters such as percentage attendance 
at Board Meetings, participation in discussions, preparedness for meetings by reading of the 
relevant papers, level of engagement, contribution in terms of improving business performance, 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.  
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
Remuneration Policy of the Company is based on the following objectives: 
 

a) To determine and recommend to the Board the remuneration package of the Executive 
Directors and sitting fees to Non-Executive Directors.  
 

b) To approve in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any year, the minimum 
remuneration payable to the Executive Directors, considering the limits and subject to the 
parameters as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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c) Such other functions as required or recommended by Board or under the provisions of 

the Listing Regulations. 
 
Remuneration Paid to Directors for 2022 - 23 
 
The Remuneration paid to Executive/Non-executive including Independent Directors are 
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as approved by the 
Shareholders in their General Meeting subject to terms specified in Articles of Association of the 
Company. The details of remuneration paid, during the year, to the Directors are given below: 
 
Details of remuneration paid to Directors for 2022-23 
 

Name of Director Category 
Sitting Fee 

(Rs.) 
Salaries 

(Rs.) 
Total 
(Rs.) 

Mr. S. Kannadasan Non-Executive Independent 30,000 Nil 30,000 
Mr. Prasan Chand Jain Non-Executive 15,000 Nil 15,000 
Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar Executive Nil Nil Nil 
Mr. Mahesh Chandak Executive Nil *18,00,000 *18,00,000 

Mr. Rajesh Gurdas Wadhwa Non-Executive Independent 20,000 Nil 20,000 
Ms. Dhanesh Mrinalini Non-Executive Independent 20,000 Nil 20,000 

 
* Inclusive of allowances 
 
There is no notice period or severance fee provided in the terms of appointment / re-appointment 
of the Executive Directors. 
 
The Company does not have any Stock Option Scheme. 
 
Remuneration Policy 
  
Remuneration paid to Executive Director 
 
Mr. Mahesh Chandak 
 
At the Board Meeting held on 12.08.2021, Mr. Mahesh Chandak (DIN: 00050149) was re-
appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company, designated as Executive Director on the 
following terms, conditions and remuneration:  
 

Basic Salary: Rs. 1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand only) p.m. (i.e., Rs. 
18,00,000/- p.a.) 
 
Perquisite(s): 
  

Rs. 15,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Thousand 
only) p.m. (i.e. Rs. 1,80,000/- p.a.). 
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Explanation:  
 
Perquisites shall be evaluated as per the Income-tax Rules, wherever applicable and in absence of 
any such rule, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost. 
 
Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Non-Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company. They are entitled 
only to sitting fees for every meeting of the Board and Audit Committee attended. The total 
sitting fees paid to them for attending the meetings in 2022-23 are given elsewhere in this report. 
 
The sitting fees are being paid to the Non-Executive Directors at the following rates: 
 

 Rs. 5,000/- per Director for every meeting of the Board attended. 
 Rs. 1,000/- per Director for every meeting of the Audit Committee attended. 

 
There is no other pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis 
the Company. 
 
c)  
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises of two members, namely Mr. S. Kannadasan, 
Non-Executive Independent Director and Mr. Mahesh Chandak, Executive Director. The 

composition and the terms of reference meet with the requirements of Regulation 20 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions 
of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The terms of reference to this Committee is to look into and redress the complaints received from 

transposition of shares. 
 
During the year 2022-23, no complaint was received from Shareholders. There were no 
transfer/transmission and / or issue of duplicate share certificate(s), demat/remat request received 
by the Company during the year. 
 
d) Investment & Borrowing Committee 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the Committee comprises of two members, namely Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar, 
and Mr. Mahesh Chandak, Executive Directors. The Board has constituted Investment & 
Borrowing Committee for the purpose of determination, review and evaluation of the Investments 
made / to be made by the Company in the course of Business and report the same to the Board on 
a quarterly basis.  
 
The Composition of Investment & Borrowing Committee and details of meetings attended by the 
Directors are given below: 
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Attendance Record of Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited Investment & 
Borrowing Committee during 2022-23 
 

Name of Members Category Status 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 
Mr. Mahesh Chandak Executive Chairman 5 5 
Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar Executive Member 5 5 

 
 

IV. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
 

Financial Highlights 
            (Rs.) 

Particulars F.Y.2023 F.Y.2022 
Sales 2,59,03,116 2,69,15,691 

Net Sales 2,59,03,116 2,69,15,691 
PBT 1,51,07,205 1,81,05,669 
PAT 97,70,401 1,36,60,925 

Total Comprehensive Income 85,01,531 1,69,55,418 
 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
 
The Directors' Report includes Management Discussion and Analysis. 
 
V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
Details about Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings are as under: 
 
 

Financial 
Year 

Date of 
AGM 

Time Venue 

2022 28.09.2022 11:30 A.M. 
Meeting held through Video 

Conferencing   

2021 29.09.2021 11:30 A.M. 
Meeting held through Video 

Conferencing   

2020 29.12.2020 11:30 A.M. 
Meeting held through Video 

Conferencing   

 
  

30



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS  REPORT | 

 

 
Special resolutions passed during the last three AGMs 

Date of AGM Particulars 

28.09.2022 
1. Appointment of M/s. Diyali B And Associates, Chartered Accountants as 
the Auditor of the Company in place of Retiring Auditor. 

29.09.2021 

1. Re-appointment of Mr. S. Vinodh Kumar as Whole Time Director 
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Mahesh Chandak as Whole Time Director 
3. Approval of loan, Investment, Guarantee or Security under section 185 of 
Companies Act, 2013. 

29.12.2020 1. To re  appoint Mrs. Dhanesh Mrinalini as an independent director. 

 
Postal Ballot 
 
One resolution for amendment of Articles of Association was passed by Postal Ballot during the 
year 2022-23. 
 
Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors 
 
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Company, provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and 
the rules made there under one-third of the rotational Directors shall retire by rotation at every 
Annual General Meeting of the Company excluding the Independent Directors. Accordingly, Mr. 
Mahesh Chandak and Mr. Prasan Chand Jain, Executive Directors of the Company retires by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. 
 
VI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS 

The quarterly 

and quarterly Shareholding Pattern are electronically filed to the Stock Exchange and are also 
www.sugalshare.comunder Investor Relations > Reporting > 

Quarterly Financial Results. The Annual Report containing inter-alia, the Audited Financial 
Statements, Directors Report, Auditors Report and other important information is circulated 
to the members well in advance of the Annual General Meeting.  
 

VII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

Annual General Meeting 

Date      : September 29, 2023 
Time     : 11:30 A.M.  

 

Financial Calendar 

Financial Year: April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 
 
For the year ended March 31, 2023, results will be announced: 
 
First quarter           : By mid of August, 2022 
Second quarter       : By mid of November, 2022 
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Third quarter          : By mid of February, 2023 
Fourth quarter        : By mid of May, 2023 
 
 
Book Closure 
 
The dates of book closure are from September 15, 2023 to September 29, 2023 inclusive of 
both days. 
 
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L65991TN1993PLC028228 
 
The Company has no outstanding ADRs/GDRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 
 
Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code 
 
Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai  400 001. (Stock Code  511654).  Listing fee to the Stock Exchange has been paid up 
to date. 

 
Market Price Data: High/Low in each month of Financial Year 2022-23 on Bombay Stock 
Exchange: 
 

Month 
High 
Rs. 

Low 
Rs. 

Month 
High 
Rs. 

Low 
Rs. 

Apr, 2022 21.23 13.71 Oct, 2022 15.96 13.78 

May, 2022 21.00 15.80 Nov, 2022 16.22 13.24 

June, 2022 19.60 16.15 Dec, 2022 16.46 13.90 

July, 2022 15.35 12.40 Jan, 2023 16.45 14.40 

Aug, 2022 17.11 13.20 Feb, 2023 16.35 13.30 

Sept, 2022 16.00 13.20 Mar, 2023 16.00 13.96 

 
Registrars and Transfer Agents, Share Transfer System 
 

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd. 
No. 1, Subramanian Building, V Floor 
Club House Road 
Chennai - 600 002 

 
are functioning as the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company to deal with transfer 
of shares in physical form and also for electronic connectivity. 
 
Share transfers are registered and returned in the normal course within an average period of 15 
days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in all respects. 
 
Requests for dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given to the respective 
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited within 15 days by M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited. 
 
The International Securities Identification No. (ISIN) allotted to the Company is INE 
309D01011. 
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Categories of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023: 
 

Category No. of shares % of total shares 

Promoters and Associates 44,39,902 71.04 

Nationalised Banks 0 0.00 

NRIs 33,647 0.54 

Others  
(includes holding of Corporate 
Bodies) 

17,76,458 28.42 

TOTAL 62,50,007 100.00 

 
 
Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023: 

 
Dematerialisation of Shares: 59,53,613 shares (95.26%) of the Company have been 
dematerialised as on March 31, 2023. 
 
Plant Location: Not applicable. The Company is a Share Broking Company having its 
Registered Office at Chennai. 
 
Address of Correspondence: Investors and Shareholders can correspond with the Company at 
the following address: 

  The Executive Director 
Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited  
City Centre Plaza, (I Floor) 

  7, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002 
  Phone Nos. 2858 7105 - 08    |    Fax No: 4215 5285 
  E-mail for Investors: sugalshare_2008@rediffmail.com 

For redressal of grievances: info.sdsbl@gmail.com 
  

No. of shares 
No. of 

Shareholders 
% of total 

shareholders 
No. of shares 

% of total 
shares 

Up to 500 2434 86.31 318362 5.09 

501 to 1000 199 7.06 161836 2.59 
1001 to 2000 88 3.12 134879 2.16 

2001 to 3000 24 0.85 60441 0.97 
3001 to 4000 8 0.28 28225 0.45 

4001 to 5000 14 0.49 66985 1.07 
5001 to 10000 26 0.93 202479 3.24 

10001 and above 27 0.96 5276800 84.43 

TOTAL 2820   100.00 6250007 100.00 
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VIII. DISCLOSURES 

 
Related Party Transaction 
 
All related party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee. There were no materially 
significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company at large.  
 
Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
 
In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
and Amendment Rules, 2017, the Company is required to transfer the unclaimed dividend which 
has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more, to IEPF Authority. The total number 
of shares transferred to IEPF is 2,38,252.  
 
List of Shareholders whose dividend remain unclaimed till the date of Annual General Meeting 
held on September have been uploaded on the website of the Company www.sugalshare.com 
under Investor Relations -> Reporting -> Statement of Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend. 
Shareholders are requested to check their unpaid dividend from the list and contact the Registrars 
and Share Transfer Agents to encash these unpaid dividends. 
 
Details of Non-Compliance by the Company 
 
Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited has compiled with all the requirements of regulatory 
authorities. No penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI 
or any authority on any matter during the year under review. 
 
Whistle Blower Policy 
 
The Company has an established mechanism to Directors, Employees and stakeholders to report 
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code of Conduct. 
It also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/Employees who avail 
the mechanism. The Company affirms that no personnel have been denied access to the audit 
committee to lodge their Grievances. The Company has formulated a Whistle Bowler Policy and 
Vi
Investor Relations > Company Policies >Whistle Bowler Policy &Vigil Mechanism. 
 

Code of Conduct 

The Company has posted the code of Ethics & Business Conduct for Directors and Senior 
Management on its website www.sugalshare.com under Investor Relations > Company Policies > 
Ethics & Business Conduct. 

 
Policy on Risk Management 
 
In accordance with the requirement of Corporate Governance the Board of Directors of the 
Company has adopted a policy on Risk Management for assessment and minimization procedure 
of risk for periodical review by the Board. 
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Code for Prevention of Insider Trading 
 
In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company has formulated Code of Conduct & 
Internal Procedures for regulating, monitoring & reporting of Trading by Insiders. Ms. Radhika 
Maheshwari has been designated as the Compliance Officer responsible for compliance of 
policies, procedures, maintenance of records, etc., for the adherence to the said Policy. 
 
No Harassment Policy 
 
No Harassment Policy drafted as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 & the rules made there under was adopted by 
the Board at its meeting held on January 31, 2014. 
 
POLICY ON DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY FOR DISCLOSURES 
 
In terms of the Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

Policy for determination of materiality of events/ information. Further, the detailed policy are 
provided on our website, at www.sugalshare.com/company policies/policy on determination of 
materiality for disclosures. 
 
POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS 
 
In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

objective of classifying various documents, records and registers for the purpose of maintenance 
and preservation. Further, the detailed policies are provided on our website, at 
www.sugalshare.com /company policies/policy on preservation of documents. 
 
 
(B) ADOPTON OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

(a) 

Whether Chairman of the Board is entitled 

performance of his duties.  

The Chairman of the Board does not keep 
any office in the Regd. office of the 
Company. 
 

(b) 

 The half yearly 
declaration of financial performance 
including summary of the significant 
events in last 6 months should be sent to 
each household of shareholders 

-yearly results are 
published in an English Newspaper and in a 
Tamil Newspaper, the same are not sent to 
the shareholders of the Company.  
 
There is no publication of second half-
yearly results as the annual audited results 
are approved by the Board and then 
published in the newspapers and also 
communicated to the shareholders through 
the Annual Report. 
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 
SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED 
CHENNAI 
 
Re.: Financial Statements for the year 2022 - 23 - Certification by CEO and CFO 
 
I, Dhakshayani, Chief Financial Officer of Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited, on the basis 
of the review of the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2023 and to the best of my knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:- 
 
1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading. 
 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

3. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year ended March 31, 2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of 
the Company's Code of Conduct. 
 

4. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting. I have evaluated the effectiveness of the Internal Control Systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the Auditor and the Audit Committee 
those deficiencies, of which I am aware, in the design or operation of the Internal Control 
Systems and that I have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
5. I further certify that:- 
 

a) there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 
this year; 
 

b) all significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements; 
 

c) there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 
involvement therein, of management or an employee having significant role in the 
Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
Sd/- 

         Dhakshayani 
    Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Chennai         
Date: May 26, 2023  
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
To 
The Members of Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited 

 
 
I, Mahesh Chandak, Executive Director of Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited, to the 
best of my knowledge and belief, declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and 
Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics 
for the current year. 

 
 
          Sd/- 
Place: Chennai        (Mahesh Chandak)             
Date: May 26, 2023       Executive Director   

DIN - 00050149
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s Sugal & Damani 
Share Brokers Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together 
with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.  

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

We do not have any key audit matters that needs to be communicated in our report.  
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but 
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 
on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.   
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.   

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.   

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.   

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
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the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statements.  

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those 
charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns 
adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by 
us.  

 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account and with the returns received 
from the branches not visited by us.  

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.  

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31stMarch, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure A”.  

 
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

standalone financial position. 
 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.  

 
(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the   

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  
 
(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 
 

(v) The company has neither declared nor paid any interim or final dividend during the 
year. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  
 
 
For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 017740S 
 
Sd/- 
DIYALI B 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 242354 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 26th May, 2023 
UDIN: 23242354BGZGMS5138 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the members of M/s Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited of even 
date.) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause(i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Sugal & Damani 
Share Brokers Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

44



AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March,2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 017740S 
Sd/- 
DIYALI B 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 242354 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 26th May, 2023 
UDIN : 23242354BGZGMS5138 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the members of M/s Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited of 
even date.) 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and 
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 

1. a. (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipments and relevant 
details of right-of-use assets. 
 
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

 
b. The Property, Plant and Equipments of the Company have been physically verified by 

the management at reasonable intervals and as informed, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. 
 

c. The title deeds of the immoveable properties (other than properties where the company 
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.  

 
d. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments (including Right of 
Use 

assets) or intangible assets during the year. 
 
e. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
2. a.  The inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the 

management and in the opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
management is appropriate. 

 
b. The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 

rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
3. The company, during the year, has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature 

of loans or made any investment in or provided any guarantee or security to companies, 
firms Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.  Hence reporting under clause 
3(iii)(a) to clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable. 
 

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities. 
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5. The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried 
on by the company. 

 
7.   (a)  The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 

Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 

   
 According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State 
Insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were outstanding, as on the last day of 
the financial year, for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

 
(b)  There are no dues of Goods and Service Tax, Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s 

State Insurance, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess and any other statutory dues outstanding on account of any disputes. 

 
8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 
9. a. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 

payment of interest thereon to any lenders.  
 

b. The company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. 
 
c. The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 
 
d. No funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes. 
 
e. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
 
f. The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held 

in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 
 

10.a. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 

 
b. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
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11. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 

company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
 

 b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 
 c. We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 

Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedures. 

 
12. The Company is not a Nidhi company.  Accordingly, Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 
 
13.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the record of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

 
14.  a. The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business. 
 

b. We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit in 
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

 
15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 

connected with its directors. 
 
16. a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act 1934. 
 

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities or Housing 
Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve 
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
c. The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
d. The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group. 
 

17. The company has neither incurred cash losses during the financial year under audit nor in 
the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 
19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the 
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 
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is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 
they fall due. 

 
20. a. There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), other 

than with respect to the ongoing projects, requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) 
of Section 135 of the said Act.  

 
b. There were no amounts remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing projects. 
 

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No: 017740S 
 
Sd/- 
DIYALI B 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 242354 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 26th May, 2023 
UDIN: 23242354BGZGMS5138 
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Rs in thousands

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant & equipment 3 578.91                                                 725.59                                                 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 (a) 695.00                                                 -                                                       

(c) Other Intangible assets 4 40.66                                                   40.66                                                   

(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 14,782.46                                           20,251.94                                           

(ii) Loans 6 16,544.56                                           10,284.56                                           

(iii) Others 7 212.90                                                 -                                                       

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 14 84.74                                                   -                                                       

(f) Other non-current assets -                                                       -                                                       

32,939.23                                           31,302.75                                           

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 8 238.24                                                 179.93                                                 

(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 9 33,047.34                                           1,28,246.70                                        

(ii) Trade receivables 10 1,540.88                                             5,553.88                                             

(iii) Cash & cash equivalents 11 893.88                                                 1,308.73                                             

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 1,10,641.82                                        27,230.75                                           

(v) Loans 13 365.03                                                 392.53                                                 

(vi) Others -                                                       -                                                       

(c) Current tax assets (net) 14 3,349.10                                             4,853.05                                             

(d) Other current assets 15 35,135.33                                           12.10                                                   

1,85,211.62                                        1,67,777.67                                        

TOTAL ASSETS 2,18,150.85                                        1,99,080.42                                        

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder's funds

(a) Equity Share Capital 16 62,500.07                                           62,500.07                                           

(b) Other equity 17 1,28,096.86                                        1,19,595.33                                        

1,90,596.93                                        1,82,095.40                                        

(2) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings -                                                       -                                                       

(ii) Other financial liabilities -                                                       -                                                       

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 -                                                       192.81                                                 

(c) Provisions 18 636.43                                                 853.78                                                 

636.43                                                 1,046.59                                             

(3) Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19 10,495.23                                           -                                                       

(ii) Trade payables -                                                       -                                                       

 -Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                                                       -                                                       

 -Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

  small enterprises
20 14,716.78                                           14,852.13                                           

(iii) Other financial liabilities 21 618.38                                                 621.38                                                 

(b) Other current liabilities 22 1,087.10                                             464.92                                                 

26,917.49                                           15,938.43                                           

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 2,18,150.85                                        1,99,080.42                                        

Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board and Directors of

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No : 017740S

Sd/- Sd/-              Sd/-

DIYALI B Mahesh Chandak Santhanam Kannadasan

Proprietor Whole time director Director

Membership No : 242354 DIN : 00050149 DIN : 00050177

Sd/-           Sd/-

Place : Chennai Radhika Maheshwari Dhakshayani

Date : 26th May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31-Mar-2023

Particulars Note No.  As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
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I Revenue

Revenue from operations 23 12,593.15                             18,654.67                                

Other income 24 13,309.97                             8,261.02                                   

Total Revenue 25,903.12                             26,915.69                                

II Expense

Cost of service 25 303.43                                   386.06                                      

Changes in inventories 26 -58.31                                   -35.19                                       

Employee benefits expense 27 7,854.46                               6,274.71                                   

Finance cost 28 90.84                                     -                                            

Depreciation and amortization expense 3 & 4 207.62                                   184.61                                      

Other expenses 29 2,397.87                               1,999.83                                   

Total expenses 10,795.91                             8,810.02                                  

III Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 15,107.21                             18,105.67                                

IV Exceptional items -                                         -                                            

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 15,107.21                             18,105.67                                

VI Tax expense:

  - Current tax 3,674.98                               3,784.00                                   

  - Current tax  (Previous Years) 1,620.43                               -                                            

  - Deferred tax 14 41.40                                     660.74                                      

5,336.81                               4,444.74                                  

VII Profit / (Loss) for the year (V - VI) 9,770.40                               13,660.93                                

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

(A) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(B) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments through OCI -1,858.67                              3,338.98                                   

Income tax effect on above 318.95                                   -572.97                                     

Remeasurement of defined benefit cost through OCI 270.85                                   528.48                                      

Income tax effect on above -                                         -                                            

-1,268.87                              3,294.49                                  

IX Total Comprehensive Income (VII+VIII) 8,501.53                               16,955.42                                

Earnings per share

  - Basic & Diluted (In Rupees) 1.56                                       2.19                                          

Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board and Directors of

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No : 017740S

   Sd/- Sd/-                 Sd/-

DIYALI B Mahesh Chandak Santhanam Kannadasan

Proprietor Whole time director Director

Membership No : 242354 DIN : 00050149 DIN : 00050177

Sd/-           Sd/-

Place : Chennai Radhika Maheshwari Dhakshayani

Date : 26th May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited
Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31-Mar-2023

Rupees in Thousands

Particulars Note No.
 Year ended 31st March, 

2023 

Year ended 31st March, 

2022
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Rupees in Thousands

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 15,107.21                                              18,105.67                                              

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization 207.62                                                   184.61                                                   

Asset Discarded -                                                          -                                                          

Remeasurement of defined benefit cost 270.85                                                   528.48                                                   

Interest paid 90.84                                                     -                                                          

Interest income -4,490.36                                               -4,614.00                                               

Dividend income -175.88                                                  -173.70                                                  

Net (gain)/loss on sale of investments -2,736.35                                               -1,977.54                                               

-6,833.28                                              -6,052.15                                               

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 8,273.93                                                12,053.52                                              

Movement in working capital

Inventories -58.31                                                    -35.19                                                    

Trade receivables 4,013.00                                                -919.07                                                  

Other receivables -1,24,979.71                                         66,846.59                                              

Trade payables -135.35                                                  -1,059.67                                               

Other liabilities 401.83                                                   -902.46                                                  

-1,20,758.54                                         63,930.20                                              

Cash flow from extraordinary items -                                                          -                                                          

Cash generated from operations -1,12,484.61                                         75,983.72                                              

Net income tax (paid) / refunds -3,791.45                                               -5,310.39                                               

Net cash flow from operating activities (A) -1,16,276.06                                         70,673.33                                              

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for Property, plant and equipments (Net) -755.94                                                  -102.63                                                  

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipments -                                                          -                                                          

Purchase of Investments -13,343.16                                            -2,23,069.10                                         

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,14,889.68                                          82,405.89                                              

Interest received 4,490.36                                                4,614.00                                                

Dividend received 175.88                                                   173.70                                                   

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 1,05,456.82                                          -1,35,978.14                                         

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid -90.84                                                    -                                                          

Proceeds from borrowings 10,495.23                                              -                                                          

Repayment of Borrowings -                                                          -                                                          

Net issue / (redemption) of shares -                                                          -                                                          

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) 10,404.39                                              -                                                          

-414.85                                                  -65,304.81                                             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,308.73                                                66,613.54                                              

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 893.88                                                   1,308.73                                                

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Cash on hand 79.31                                                     5.17                                                        

(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts 814.57                                                   1,303.56                                                

(ii) In deposit accounts -                                                          -                                                          

893.88                                                   1,308.73                                                

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board and Directors of

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No : 017740S

   Sd/- Sd/-                Sd/-

DIYALI B Mahesh Chandak Santhanam Kannadasan

Proprietor Whole time director Director

Membership No : 242354 DIN : 00050149 DIN : 00050177

Sd/-          Sd/-

Place : Chennai Radhika Maheshwari Dhakshayani

Date : 26th May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

 Year ended 31st March, 2023 Year ended 31st March, 2022Particulars

Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023
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Statement of Changes in Equity  (SOCIE)

(A) : Equity Share Capital

62,500.07                 62,500.07                 

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -                             -                             

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 62,500.07                 62,500.07                 

-                             -                             

62,500.07                 62,500.07                 

(B) : Other Equity

Items of OCI

Capital reserve Retained earnings
Equity Instruments 

through OCI

Balance at 1st April 2021 154.48                       1,02,345.50              139.93                       1,02,639.91              

Change in accounting policy or prior period errors -                             -                             -                             -                             

Restated balance at 1st April 2021 154.48                       1,02,345.50              139.93                       1,02,639.91              

Profit for the year -                             13,660.93                 -                             13,660.93                 

Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax -                             -                             3,294.49                    3,294.49                    

Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined 

benefit obligation net of income tax

-                             -                             -                             -                             

Total comprehensive income for the year -                             13,660.93                 3,294.49                   16,955.42                 

Cash dividends -                             -                             -                             -                             

Transfer to retained earnings -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total dividend -                             -                             -                             -                             

Balance at 31st March, 2022 154.48                       1,16,006.43              3,434.42                   1,19,595.33              

Balance at 1st April 2022 154.48                       1,16,006.43              3,434.42                   1,19,595.33              

Change in accounting policy or prior period errors -                             -                             -                             -                             

Restated balance at 1st April 2022 154.48                       1,16,006.43              3,434.42                   1,19,595.33              

Profit for the year -                             9,770.40                    -                             9,770.40                    

Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax -                             -                             -1,539.72                  -1,539.72                  

Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined 

benefit obligation net of income tax

-                             -                             270.85                       270.85                       

Total comprehensive income for the year -                             9,770.40                   -1,268.87                  8,501.53                   

Cash dividends -                             -                             -                             -                             

Transfer to retained earnings -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total dividend -                             -                             -                             -                             

Balance at 31st March, 2023 154.48                       1,25,776.83              2,165.55                   1,28,096.86              

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board and Directors of

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No : 017740S

   Sd/-    Sd/-                Sd/-

DIYALI B Mahesh Chandak Santhanam Kannadasan

Proprietor Whole time director Director

Membership No : 242354 DIN : 00050149 DIN : 00050177

   Sd/-        Sd/-

Place : Chennai Radhika Maheshwari Dhakshayani

Date : 26th May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Particulars

Reserve & Surplus

Total Equity

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCEI)

Balance at the end of the reporting period

Particulars
As at 31st March, 

2023

As at 31st March, 

2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Notes to Financial statements

Note Particulars

1 Corporate information
Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited (CIN : L65991TN1993PLC028228) , a public limited company incorporated under Company Act, is registered 

with SEBI to function as a share broker.  The Registered office of the company is situated at No 07, City Centre Plaza, First Floor, Anna Salai,  

Chennai-600002.

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian

Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act"), and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules issued from time to time and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (collectively called as Ind AS).

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, 

except for financial assets, financial liabilities and defined benefit plans which have been measured at fair value, as required by relevant Ind AS.

2.3 Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

  a) It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold in the Company’s normal operating cycle.

  b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

  c) It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  d) It is a cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability  for atleast twelve months after 

       the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following criteria:

 a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle,

 b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

 c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

 d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months  after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.    Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

2.4  Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets

or liabilities affected in future periods.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipments are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase price and other 

attributable costs , if any , in bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided for on Straight Line method in the manner prescribed in Part C of Schedule II of the 

Companies Act,2013 and reckoning the maximum residual value @ 5% of the original cost of the asset.

(ii) In respect of addition of assets during the year, depreciation has been provided on Pro-rata basis.

2.6  Inventories

Stocks are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.
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2.7 Revenue recognition

Brokerage and Commission receipts

Brokerage and Commission receipts are recognised on accrual basis.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised upon approval by relevant authority and the right to receive is established.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective interest rate applicable.

2.8 Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which 

the related service is rendered.

(ii) Post Employment benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have 

no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.  Contributions paid/payable for Provident Fund of eligible employees is recognized in 

the statement of Profit and Loss each year.

(b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of 

defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current 

and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

Post employment benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee has rendered 

services.  The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

2.9 Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases 

and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(A) Financial Assets

The  Company  determines  the  classification  of  its  financial  assets  at initial recognition.  The classification depends on the Company’s business 

model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

b) Those to be measured at amortised cost.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in 

debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend 

on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value 

through other comprehensive income. At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 

asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 

costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent measurement of debt 

instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three 

measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.

(i) Amortised Cost

The Company classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, trade and other receivables, and other financial assets that are held with the objective 

of collecting contractual cash flows. After initial measurement at fair value, the financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit or Loss in other income.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,  where  the  asset's  cash flows  represent  

solely  payments  of  principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount 

are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, and interest revenue which are 

recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset  is derecognised,  the  cumulative  gain  or  loss  previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income  is  reclassified  from  equity  to profit or loss  and  recognised  in  other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial 

assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

a) Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at amortised cost;

b) Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at fair value through other comprehensive income; and

c) Debt investments that have been designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers the financial 

asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

(B) Financial Liabilities

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss. 

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.     Loans and borrowings, payables 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(C) Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election 

to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 

recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the 

cumulative gain or loss within equity.   Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognized in the Profit and Loss.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, 

cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, cheques on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above.

2.11 Taxation

A. Current Tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year.
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B. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary

differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extend that it is probable that taxable

profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset

realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

2.12 Segment accounting
The Company operates in a single segment i.e trading of shares and hence not call for segmentwise disclosure of assets, liabilities, revenues or

expenses as prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard 108 on "Operating Segments".

  

The Company operates mainly in Indian market and there are no reportable geographical segments.

2.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 

the obligation.

B. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that 

arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount 

can not be made.

C. Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.14 Statement of Cash flows

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, 

any deferrals of accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or 

financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and finance activities of the Company are segregated.

2.15 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

2.16 Dividend to Equity Shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders, if any, is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholder's equity in the period in which the dividends are 

approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.
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Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Notes to Financial statements

Note- 3 : Property, plant and equipment

As at 1st April, 

2022
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st March, 

2023

As at 1st April, 

2022
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st 

March, 2023

As at 31st March, 

2023

As at 31st March, 

2022

Air Conditioner                280.55 -                 -                       280.55                                    164.02 25.61              -                           189.63                  90.92                      116.53                   

Computer & Accessories                471.41 60.94             -                       532.35                                    329.30 42.47              -                           371.77                  160.58                   142.11                   

Electrical Fittings                   81.87 -                 -                       81.87                                        17.91 -                   -                           17.91                    63.96                      63.96                     

Furniture & Fixture                128.04 -                 -                       128.04                                      44.44 -                   -                           44.44                    83.60                      83.60                     

Vehicles 1,174.74            -                 -                       1,174.74                  863.33               139.54            -                           1,002.87               171.87                   311.41                   

Office Equipments 17.27                  -                 -                       17.27                       9.29                   -                   -                           9.29                      7.98                        7.98                       

Total 2,153.88            60.94             -                       2,214.82                  1,428.29           207.62            -                           1,635.91               578.91                   725.59                   

Note- 3 : Property, plant and equipment

As at 1st April, 

2021
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st March, 

2022

As at 1st April, 

2021
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st 

March, 2022

As at 31st March, 

2022

As at 31st March, 

2021

Air Conditioner                280.55 -                 -                       280.55                                    136.65 27.37              -                           164.02                  116.53                   143.90                   

Computer & Accessories                368.78 102.63           -                       471.41                                    311.60 17.70              -                           329.30                  142.11                   57.18                     

Electrical Fittings                   81.87 -                 -                       81.87                                        17.91 -                   -                           17.91                    63.96                      63.96                     

Furniture & Fixture                128.04 -                 -                       128.04                                      44.44 -                   -                           44.44                    83.60                      83.60                     

Vehicles 1,174.74            -                 -                       1,174.74                  723.79               139.54            -                           863.33                  311.41                   450.95                   

Office Equipments 17.27                  -                 -                       17.27                       9.29                   -                   -                           9.29                      7.98                        7.98                       

Total 2,051.25            102.63           -                       2,153.88                  1,243.68           184.61            -                           1,428.29               725.59                   807.57                   

Particulars

Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value

Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value

Particulars

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 3 (a): Capital work-in-progress

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress 695.00               -                 -                       -                            695.00               

Projects temporarily suspended -                      -                 -                       -                            -                     

Total 695.00               -                 -                       -                            695.00               

Note- 3 (a): Capital work-in-progress

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress -                      -                 -                       -                            -                     

Projects temporarily suspended -                      -                 -                       -                            -                     

Total -                      -                 -                       -                            -                     

Note- 4 : Other intangible assets

As at 1st April, 

2022
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st March, 

2023

As at 1st April, 

2022
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st 

March, 2023

As at 31st March, 

2023

As at 31st March, 

2022

Software 269.27               -                 -                       269.27                     228.61               -                   -                           228.61                  40.66                      40.66                     

Total 269.27               -                 -                       269.27                     228.61               -                   -                           228.61                  40.66                      40.66                     

Note- 4 : Other intangible assets

As at 1st April, 

2021
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st March, 

2022

As at 1st April, 

2021
Addition

Deletion/ 

Discarded

As at 31st 

March, 2022

As at 31st March, 

2022

As at 31st March, 

2021

Software 269.27               -                 -                       269.27                     228.61               -                   -                           228.61                  40.66                      40.66                     

Total 269.27               -                 -                       269.27                     228.61               -                   -                           228.61                  40.66                      40.66                     

Particulars

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars

Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31st 

March, 2023

As at 31st 

March, 2022

Particulars

Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value

Particulars

Gross carrying value Depreciation Net carrying value

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Notes to Financial statements

Note- 5 : Non-current investments

Particulars  Face Value 

 Quantity As at 

31st March, 

2023 

 Quantity As at 

31st March, 

2022 

 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unquoted equity shares measured at fair value through OCI

Investment in Associate company

Sugal Commodity Brokers Limited 10                         1,78,190            1,78,190          1,246.23                    1,222.24                

1,246.23                    1,222.24                

Quoted equity shares measured at fair value through OCI

Ashok Leyland Limited                             1                          -                 18,000                                  -                   2,110.50 

Balrampur Chini Mills Limited                             1                          -                      100                                  -                         48.99 

Berger Paints India Ltd                             1                   3,300                 2,200                     1,919.61                 1,539.56 

Bharat Textiles & Proofing Industries Limited                          10                      200                    200                             1.21                         1.21 

Dabur India Ltd                             1                   1,250                 3,750                         681.38                 2,012.06 

Granules India Limited                             1                          -                   1,550                                  -                       475.07 

DLF India Ltd                             2                   1,650                        -                           589.05                              -   

Gujarat Gas Ltd                             2                   2,500                 1,250                     1,149.25                     629.06 

HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd                          10                   5,600                 7,800                     2,796.36                 4,198.35 

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Ltd                          10                   6,000                 3,000                     2,614.20                 1,502.70 

Indiabulls Housing Finance Ltd                             2                   4,000                 3,100                         389.40                     489.18 

ITC Limited                             1                          -                   4,000                                  -                   1,003.20 

L&T Finance Holdings Ltd                          10                 18,924               45,696                     1,552.71                 3,683.10 

Laurus Labs Ltd                             2                   3,300                        -                           966.90                              -   

Nippon Life India Asset Management Ltd                          10                   3,200                 3,200                         672.16                 1,114.56 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited                             1                         34                       34                         109.00                     127.16 

Valecha Engineering Limited                          10                   5,000                 5,000                           95.00                       95.00 

13,536.23                  19,029.70              

Total 14,782.46                  20,251.94              

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 13,536.23                  19,029.70              

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 13,536.23                  19,029.70              

Aggregate carrying value of  unquoted investments 1,246.23                    1,222.24                

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) -                              -                          

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 1,246.23                    1,222.24                

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 13,536.23                  19,029.70              

Total 14,782.46                  20,251.94              

Note- 6 : Non-current Loans

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposit with exchanges 8,406.98                    9,531.97                

Security Deposit- Others 7,500.00                    -                          

Others 637.58                        752.59                    

Total 16,544.56                  10,284.56              

Note-7 : Other non-current financial assets

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unsecured, considered good

In Deposit accounts (original maturity more than 12 months) 212.90                        -                          

Total 212.90                        -                          

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Notes to Financial statements

Note- 8 : Inventories

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Stock in trade 238.24                        179.93                    

Total 238.24                        179.93                    

Note- 9 : Current Investments

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Investment in Mutual Funds 33,047.34                  1,28,246.70           

Total 33,047.34                  1,28,246.70           

Note- 10 : Trade receivables

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Secured, considered good 1,540.88                    5,553.88                

Unsecured, considered good -                              -                          

Unsecured, considered doubtful -                              -                          

1,540.88                    5,553.88                

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -                              -                          

Total 1,540.88                    5,553.88                

Trade receivable ageing schedule

Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade 

receivables – considered 

good

1,090.39                                        -                        -                      219.15              231.34                        1,540.88                

(ii) Undisputed Trade 

Receivables – which have 

significant increase in 

credit risk

-                                                  -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(iii) Undisputed Trade 

Receivables – credit 

impaired

-                                                  -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(iv) Disputed Trade 

Receivables–considered 

good

-                                                  -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(v) Disputed Trade 

Receivables – which have 

significant increase in 

credit risk

-                                                  -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(vi) Disputed Trade 

Receivables – credit 

impaired

-                                                  -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 11 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Cash on hand 79.31                          5.17                        

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 814.57                        1,303.56                

- In deposit accounts (maturing with in 3 months) -                              -                          

Total 893.88                        1,308.73                

Note- 12 : Other Bank balances

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

In Unclaimed dividend account -                              -                          

In Deposit accounts (original maturity more than three months) 1,10,641.82               27,230.75              

Total 1,10,641.82               27,230.75              

Note- 13 : Current Loans

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unsecured, considered good

Advances to employees 75.84                          101.84                    

Others 289.19                        290.69                    

365.03                        392.53                    

Unsecured, considered good

Others -                              -                          

Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                              -                          

-                              -                          

Total 365.03                        392.53                    

Note- 14

A. Income tax asset (net)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Advance payment of Income Tax (net) 3,349.10                    4,853.05                

Total 3,349.10                    4,853.05                

B. Deferred tax asset (net)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

(a) Statement of Profit & loss

Profit & loss section

Current income tax 5,295.41                    3,784.00                

Deferred tax relating to origination & reversal of temporary differences 41.40                          660.74                    

MAT Credit entitlment -                              -                          

Deferred tax relating to Ind AS adjustments -                              -                          

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 5,336.81                    4,444.74                

(b) Other comprehensive income section

On Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTOCI 318.95                        -572.97                  

On Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans -                              -                          

Income tax charged to OCI 318.95                        -572.97                  

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Accounting profit before income tax 15,107.21                  18,105.67              

Statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%

Tax at statutory income tax rate (A) 3,802.18                    4,556.84                

Tax effects of :

Inadmissible expenses or expenses treated separately 13.65                          4.95                        

Demand by the department for earlier years 1,620.43                    -                          

Incomes taxed at special rates -86.95                         -88.81                    

On Brought Forwarded Losses -                              -632.07                  

Admissible deductions -53.90                         -56.91                    

Deferred tax on other items 41.40                          660.74                    

Total tax effect (B) 1,534.63                    -112.10                  

Income tax expense reported in statement of Profit & loss (A+B) 5,336.81                    4,444.74                

C. Deferred tax relates to the following:

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment -206.64                      -218.97                  

Others 29.07                          -                          

Deferred tax liability

Fair valuation of financial instruments 92.83                          411.78                    

Total -84.74                         192.81                    

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Property, plant and equipment -12.33                         9.69                        

Business Losses and Depreciation Losses carried forwarded -                              -670.43                  

Others -29.07                         -                          

-41.40                         -660.74                  

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Fair valuation of financial instruments 318.95                        -572.97                  

Total 318.95                        -572.97                  

Reconciliation of deferred tax (asset)/liabilities (net):

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period                         192.81                -1,040.90 

Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in Profit & Loss (DTA) 41.40                                              660.74 

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (DTL) -318.95                      572.97                    

Total -84.74                         192.81                    

Balance Sheet

Recognised in Profit and Loss

(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the 

year ended

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

 Total 

Recognised in OCI

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 15 : Other current assets

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unsecured, considered good

Balances with govt. authorities:

   - Goods and service tax 55.72                          6.82                        

Capital Advances 35,025.85                  -                          

Pre- Paid Expenses 50.22                          -                          

Others 3.54                            5.28                        

Total 35,135.33                  12.10                      

Note- 16 : Equity Share capital 

 Number of 

shares 

(In '000s) 

 Amount

(In '000s) 

 Number of shares 

(In '000s) 

 Amount

(In '000s) 

Authorised

Equity Shares of  Rs 10/- each with voting rights 9,050.00            90,500.00        9,050.00                    90,500.00              

Issued

Equity Shares of  Rs 10/- each with voting rights

Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 6,250.01            62,500.07        6,250.01                    62,500.07              

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,250.01            62,500.07        6,250.01                    62,500.07              

Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity Shares of  Rs 10/- each with voting rights

Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 6,250.01            62,500.07        6,250.01                    62,500.07              

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 6,250.01            62,500.07        6,250.01                    62,500.07              

Total 6,250.01            62,500.07        6,250.01                    62,500.07              

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares

b) Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

 Number of 

shares 

(In '000s) 

 % of holding 
 Number of shares 

(In '000s) 
 % of holding 

Spatium Developers Private Limited 840.00                13.44% 840.00                        13.44%

Vinodh Kumar S 1,448.60            23.18% 1,448.60                    23.18%

S. Prasanchand Jain                 949.49 15.19%                         948.19 15.17%

Mahesh B Chandak 354.00                5.66% 354.00                        5.66%

Total 3,592.09            57.47% 3,590.79                    57.45%

 As at 31st March, 2023  As at 31st March, 2022 

Particulars

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` Rs 10/-  each.  Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend 

proposed by Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity 

shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their 

shareholding.

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 2023  As at 31st March, 2022 
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c) Shareholding of promotors (Equity share capital)

 Number of 

shares 

(In '000s) 

 % of holding 

 Number of 

shares 

(In '000s) 

 % of holding 
 % Change during 

the year 

Spatium Developers Private Limited 840.00                  13.44% 840.00              13.44% 0.00%

Vinodh Kumar S 1,448.60              23.18% 1,448.60          23.18% 0.00%

S. Prasanchand Jain                   949.49 15.19%               948.19 15.17% 0.02%

Mahesh B Chandak 354.00                  5.66% 354.00              5.66% 0.00%

Dwarkadas Chandak 310.00                  4.96% 310.00              4.96% 0.00%

Pramod Jain 309.21                  4.95% 309.21              4.95% 0.00%

Prasan Chand and Sons (HUF) 148.80                  2.38% 148.80              2.38% 0.00%

SugalChand PrasanChand (HUF) 54.00                    0.86% 54.00                0.86% 0.00%

Meena Chandak 10.00                    0.16% 10.00                0.16% 0.00%

Bhagwandas Chandak 8.50                      0.14% 8.50                  0.14% 0.00%

V. Kalavathy 7.20                      0.12% 7.20                  0.12% 0.00%

Nirmala P 0.10                      0.00% 0.10                  0.00% 0.00%

Vinod Kumar (HUF) -                        0.00% -                    0.00% 0.00%

Total 4,439.90              71.04% 4,438.60          71.02% 0.02%

Note- 17 : Other equity

Items of OCI

Capital reserve
Retained 

earnings

Equity Instruments 

through OCI

Balance at 1st April 2021 154.48                1,02,345.50     139.93                        1,02,639.91           

Profit for the year -                      13,660.93        -                              13,660.93              

Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax -                      -                    3,294.49                    3,294.49                

Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement

of defined benefit obligation net of income tax -                      -                    -                              -                          

Total comprehensive income for the year -                      13,660.93        3,294.49                    16,955.42              

Cash dividends -                      -                    -                              -                          

Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) -                      -                    -                              -                          

Total dividend -                      -                    -                              -                          

Balance at 31st March, 2022 154.48                1,16,006.43     3,434.42                    1,19,595.33           

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 154.48                1,16,006.43     3,434.42                    1,19,595.33           

Profit for the year -                      9,770.40          -                              9,770.40                

Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax -                      -                    -1,539.72                   -1,539.72               

-                      -                    270.85                        270.85                    

Total comprehensive income for the year -                      9,770.40          -1,268.87                   8,501.53                

Cash dividends -                      -                    -                              -                          

Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) -                      -                    -                              -                          

Total dividend -                      -                    -                              -                          

Balance at 31st March, 2023 154.48                1,25,776.83     2,165.55                    1,28,096.86           

Note- 18 : Long term provisions

 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 31) 636.43                        853.78                    

Total 636.43                        853.78                    

Reserve & Surplus

Total Equity

Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit 

obligation net of income tax

Particulars

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 2023  As at 31st March, 2022 

Rupees in Thousands

 Particulars 

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 19 : Current Financial Liabilities- borrowings

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Secured

From Banks

Overdraft facility from Banks 10,495.23                  -                          

(Secured by Shares & Fixed deposits)

Other loans and advances

Current maturities of long-term borrowings -                              -                          

Total 10,495.23                  -                          

Note- 20 : Current financial liabilities- trade payables

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unsecured, considered good

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMED)* -                              -                          

Others 14,716.78                  14,852.13              

Total 14,716.78                  14,852.13              

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

-                              -                          

-                              -                          

-                              -                          

-                              -                          

-                              -                          

-                              -                          

Total -                              -                          

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3 Years Total

(i) MSME -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(ii) Others 180.19                  -                      798.00              13,738.59                  14,716.78              

(iii) Disputed Dues-MSME -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

(iv) Disputed Dues-Others -                        -                      -                    -                              -                          

Note- 21 : Other current financial liabilities

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Unclaimed dividend -                              -                          

Franchise & client security Deposits 618.38                        621.38                    

618.38                        621.38                    

Note- 22 : Other current liabilities

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

Statutory dues 268.97                        394.79                    

Advance from Customers 449.99                        -                          

Others 368.14                        70.13                      

Total 1,087.10                    464.92                    

 Total 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular

Rupees in Thousands

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the 

interest dues as above are actually paid

*Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the 

Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 23 : Revenue from operation

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Brokerage Receipts 12,048.77                  17,934.76              

CDSL DP Charges 544.23                        718.38                    

Commission Receipts on IPO 0.15                            1.53                        

Total 12,593.15                  18,654.67              

Note- 24 : Other income

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Bad debt recovered                     1,725.00                 1,135.00 

Interest income 4,283.94                    4,614.00                

Interest on IT Refund 206.42                        -                          

Dividend receipt 175.88                        173.70                    

Short-term Capital Gain on sale of Mutual Funds 1,965.12                    868.51                    

Short-term Capital Gain on sale of Shares 330.78                        1,109.03                

Long-term Capital Gain on sale of Shares 440.45                        -                          

Profit from Futures and Options 4,143.05                    353.27                    

Miscellaneous Income 39.33                          7.51                        

Total 13,309.97                  8,261.02                

Note- 25 : Cost of services

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Annual Maintenance Charges 204.76                        228.07                    

Trading Expenses 98.67                          157.99                    

Total 303.43                        386.06                    

Note- 26 : Change in inventory

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Stock in trade

Opening stock of stock in trade 179.93                        144.74                    

Closing stock of stock in trade 238.24                        179.93                    

Total -58.31                         -35.19                    

Note- 27 : Employee benefit expenses

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other benefits 7,582.39                    6,011.21                

Contributions to provident and other funds 261.67                        253.10                    

Staff welfare expenses 10.40                          10.40                      

Total 7,854.46                    6,274.71                

 Particulars 

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Note- 28 : Finance cost

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Interest on Bank Overdraft 90.84                          -                          

Total 90.84                          -                          

Note- 29 : Other expenses

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Advertisement Expenses.                 246.29                        77.12                      

Auditor's Remuneration (Refer note (i) below) 100.00                        114.00                    

Bank Charges 1.13                            0.42                        

Director's Sitting Fees 85.00                          72.00                      

Electricity Expenses 296.74                        180.25                    

Interest on Late Payment of TDS 0.08                            1.93                        

Insurance Charges                       11.01                          10.77                      

Listing Fees 382.56                        367.88                    

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.01                            2.26                        

Office Expenses 229.67                        149.97                    

Postage & Telegram 22.43                          55.18                      

Printing And Stationery                 64.69                          -                          

Professional Charges 49.00                          85.50                      

Rates & Taxes 2.50                            2.50                        

Rate Difference -                              84.86                      

Rent 427.50                        570.00                    

Repairs &  Maintenance 105.28                        102.71                    

ROC Filing Charges 11.94                          7.80                        

Telephone & Internet Charges 227.61                        111.67                    

Travelling & Conveyance 134.43                        3.01                        

Total 2,397.87                    1,999.83                

Notes : Payments to Auditors, excluding taxes

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

 Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 

Payments to the auditors 

    - For Statutory Audit 100.00                        70.00                      

    - For Tax Audit -                              20.00                      

    - For GST Audit -                              14.00                      

    - For Taxation Matters -                              10.00                      

100.00                        114.00                    

Add : Professional Charges -                              -                          

Total 100.00                        114.00                    

Total

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands
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Rupees in Thousands

Note
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

30 (i) Commitments and Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Commitments NIL NIL

 - Bank Guarantee -                                     -                                        

-                                     -                                        

-                                     -                                        

(ii) Contingent Assets

The Company does not have any contingent assets.

31 Employee benefit plans

a) Defined contribution plans:

b) Defined benefit plans:

Rupees in Thousands

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

1. Changes In Present Value of obligation

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 853.78                               1,533.37                               

b. Current Service Cost 59.01                                  61.60                                    

c. Interest Cost 60.33                                  95.45                                    

d. Benefits Paid 65.84                                  308.16                                  

e. Remeasurements - Due to demographic assumptions -                                      -                                         

f. Remeasurements - Due to financial assumptions -                                      -                                         

g. Remeasurements - Due to experience adjustments -270.85                              -528.48                                 

h. Obligation as at the end of the year 636.43                               853.78                                  

2. Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

a. Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning of the year                                         -                                              -   

b. Interest income                                         -                                              -   

c. Employer contribution                                         -                                              -   

d. Employer direct benefit payments                                   65.84                                   308.16 

e. Benefits Payments from employer                                 -65.84                                  -308.16 

f. Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year                                         -                                              -   

3. Amount Recognised in The Balance Sheet

a. Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year -                                      -                                         

b. Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year 636.43                               853.78                                  

c. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet -636.43                              -853.78                                 

4. Expense recognised in P & L during the year

a. Current Service Cost                                   59.01 61.60                                    

b. Net Interest Cost                                   60.33 95.45                                    

c. Expense recognised during the year                                119.34 157.05                                  

5. Expense recognised in OCI during the year

a. Remeasurements - Due to demographic assumptions                                         -   -812.25                                 

b. Remeasurements - Due to financial assumptions                                 -11.20 -70.64                                   

c. Remeasurements - Due to experience adjustments                               -259.65 354.41                                  

d. Net (Income)/Expense recognised during the year                               -270.85 -528.48                                 

Assumptions :

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

a. Discount Rate (per annum) 7.51% 7.35%

b. Salary Escalation Rate (per annum) 0.00% 0.00%

c. The estimate of mortality rate during employment has been considered as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-2008).

The Company operates post employment defined employee benefits plans in the form of unfunded Gratuity.  Details of unfunded plans are as follows:

Particular

Particular

d. The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion  and other relevant factors.

Particulars

Contingent liabilities

 -  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

 - Disputed Income tax demands appealed against, not provided for :

Amount towards Defined Contribution Plans have been recognised under ‘’Contributions to provident and other funds” in Note : 27 Rs. 2,61,670/- for 

financial year 2022-2023 (Rs 2,53,098/- for financial year 2021-2022).

69



Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Notes to Financial statements

Note

32 Related party transactions

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Executive Director Mr Mahesh Chandak

Executive Director Mr S. Vinodh Kumar Jain

Director Mr S. Prasan Chand Jain

Independent Director Mr Santhanam Kannadasan

Independent Director Mr Rajesh Gurdas Wadhwa

Independent Director Mrs Dhanesh Mrinalini

Company Secretary Mrs Radhika Maheshwari 

Chief Financial Officer Mrs Dhakshayani

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Siyat Holdings Private Limited

Sugal Commodity Brokers Private Limited

Snazzy Properties Private Limited

Prathik.V

Details of transactions with related parties :

A. With Key Management Personnel

Description
Year ended 31st 

March, 2023

Year ended 31st 

March, 2022

Managerial remuneration Mahesh Chandak 1,800.00                   1,800.00                      

Radhika Maheshwari 1,200.00                   960.00                          

Dhakshayani 217.99                      205.79                          

Director's Sitting Fees 85.00                        72.00                            

Salary Payable Mahesh Chandak -                            4.48                              

Radhika Maheshwari -                            -                                

Brokerage Receipts -                            -                                

B. With Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

Description
Year ended 31st 

March, 2023

Year ended 31st 

March, 2022

Brokerage Receipts -                            -                                

Salary Payment Prathik.V 900.00                      900.00                          

Trade Receivables -                            -                                

Trade Payables -                            -                                

Advance paid for property Snazzy Properties Private Limited 21,350.00                -                                

Reimbursement of Expenses Siyat Holdings Private Limited 16.47                        -                                

Balance outstanding at the year end Siyat Holdings Private Limited 16.47                        -                                

Note Particulars
Year ended 31st 

March, 2023

Year ended 31st 

March, 2022

33 Earnings per share

Basic & Diluted

Net profit / (loss) for the year                             (Rs in '000s) 9,770.40                   13,660.93                    

Weighted average number of equity shares     (In '000s) 6,250.01                   6,250.01                      

Par value per share                                               (In Rupees) 10.00                        10.00                            

Earnings per share                                                 (In Rupees) 1.56                         2.19                             

Particulars

Names of related partiesDescription of relationship

Rupees in Thousands

Rupees in Thousands

70



34 Ratios

Particulars Numerator Denominator
 As at 31st March, 

2023 

 As at 31st March, 

2022 

 % Change during the 

year * 

Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 6.88 10.53 -35.00%

Debt – Equity ratio
Total debt (Including Lease 

Liabilities)
Shareholder’s equity 0.06 0.00 100.00%

Debt service

coverage ratio

Earnings available for

debt service@
Debt service# 0.96 N.A 100.00%

Return on Equity

(ROE)
Net profits after taxes

 Average

shareholder’s equity 
5.24% 7.87% -33.00%

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory N.A N.A N.A

Trade receivables

turnover ratio
Net Credit Sales

 Average trade

receivable  
3.55 3.66 -3.00%

Trade payables

turnover ratio

Net Credit purchase of 

services & Other expenses

 Average trade

payables 
0.02 0.03 -18.00%

Net capital turnover

ratio
Net Sales Working capital 0.08 0.12 -35.00%

Net profit ratio Net profit Net Sales 77.59% 73.23% 6.00%

Return on Capital

Employed (ROCE)

Earning before

interest and taxes
Capital employed^ 7.97% 9.93% -20.00%

Return on

Investment(ROI)

  - Quoted
Income generated

from investments
 Average investments 3.00% 2.90% 4.00%

  - Unquoted
Income generated

from investments
 Average investments 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

 @ Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest + Other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets etc

 # Principal repayment + Interest & Lease Payments

^ Tangible net worth + Deferred tax liabilities + Total Debt + Non Current Lease liabilities

* The change in % is due to the following reasons : 

The company has given advances to purchase land by availing temporary loan from the bank. This has resulted in movement in 

current assets, current liabilities and short-term borrowings, current ratio, debt-equity ratio, debt service coverage ratio and

net capital turnover ratio during the year.

35 The Company has elected not to apply Indian Accounting Standard 116 (‘Ind AS 116') “Leases” as the effect of this adoption is

insignificant on the accompanying standalone financial statement. 

36 Previous year's figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever found necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board and Directors of

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No : 017740S

    Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

DIYALI B Mahesh Chandak Santhanam Kannadasan

Proprietor Whole time director Director

Membership No : 242354 DIN : 00050149 DIN : 00050177

Sd/- Sd/-

Place : Chennai Radhika Maheshwari Dhakshayani

Date : 26th May 2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 71



E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS 

 
Dear Member, 

Sub: Instructions for e-voting  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to the 

members to cast their votes electronically on all the resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 

30thAnnual General Meeting to be held on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. The Company has 
engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. to provide the e-voting facility. The e-

voting particulars are set out below: 
 

The e-voting facility will be available during the following period: 
 

Commencement of e-voting End of e-voting 

September 26, 2023 at 09:00 a.m. IST September 28, 2023 5:00 p.m. IST 

 

STEPS FOR E -VOTING 

 

In case of members receiving e-mail:  
 

(i) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.co.in 
(ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.  

(iii) Now, select the “Company Name” from the drop down menu and click on “Submit”  

(iv) Now Enter your User ID (For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID 
followed by 8 Digits Client ID), Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio 

Number registered with the Company and then enter the Captcha Code as displayed and Click on 

Login.  

(v) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.co.in and voted 
on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. If you are a first 

time user follow the steps given below.  

(vi) Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes:  
 

 
For Members holding shares 

in Demat Form 

For Members holding shares 

in Physical Form 

PAN*  
Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

DOB#  
Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company 

records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.  

Dividend Bank Details#  Not Applicable 

 

*Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 

use the first two letters of their name and the sequence number in the PAN field. In case the sequence 

number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the first two 
characters of the name. E.g. If your name is Nilesh Jain with sequence number 1 then enter NJ00000001 

in the PAN field.  

 
#Please enter any one of the details in order to login. Incase both the details are not recorded with the 

depository or Company please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.  

 
(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “Submit” tab.  
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E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS 

(viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly to the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for 
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 

other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

(ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.  

(x) Click on the EVSN for Sugal & Damani Share Brokers Limited.  

(xi) On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option “Yes/No” 
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 

Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.  

(xii) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.  

(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “Submit”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click 

on “Cancel” and accordingly modify your vote.  

(xiv) Once you “Confirm” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  
(xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option 

on the Voting page.  

(xvi) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and Captcha 
Code click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.  

(xvii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporates. After receiving the login details 

they have to link the account(s) which they wish to vote on and then cast their vote. They should 
upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 

the same.  

 

In case of members receiving the physical copy:  
 

a. Please follow all steps from Sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.  
b. During the e-voting period, the shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form 

or in dematerialized form, as on the cut off date i.e., Friday, September 22, 2023 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.  
c. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in under help section 

or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
 

By Order of the Board 

For SUGAL & DAMANI SHARE BROKERS LTD 

Regd Office: 
‘City Center Plaza’, (I Floor)          Sd/- 

No. 7, Anna Salai, Chennai – 600 002        Radhika Maheshwari 

          Company Secretary 
 

Place: Chennai          

Date: August 11, 2023          
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